
NDAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS 
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company'') which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act" ) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (lnd AS), of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 
2022, and its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibil ities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financia l statements under the provisions 
of the Act and t he Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obta ined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matters 

As stated in Note 33 to the financial statements, regarding accumulated losses of the 

company which has resulted in erosion of the net worth of the company. However, the 

accounts have been drawn under going concern assumptions and the management is of the 

view that the erosion in net worth is temporary in nature. 

Our audit report is not qualified in respect of above matter. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are t hose matters t hat, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of t he financia l statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of t he f inancia l statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on t hese matters. 

We have determined t hat t here are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ot her information. The other 
information comprises t he information included in the Annua l Report but does not include 
the financial statement s and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the f inancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In Connection with our audit of the financia l statements, our responsibil ity is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is material ly 
inconsistent with the financia l statements or our knowledge obtained dur ing t he course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be material ly misstated 

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude t hat there is a material misstatement 
of this other information; we are requi red to report t hat fact. We have nothing to report in 
th is regard . 

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
t he Companies Act, 2013 ("t he Act") wit h respect to the preparation of t hese financial 
statements t hat give a true and fair view of t he state of affai rs (f inancial position),profit and 
loss (financia l performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Compa ny in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting St andards (l nd AS) specif ied under Section 133 of the 
Act. 

This responsibi lity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
w it h the provisions of t he Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and ot her irregular ities; selection and appl ication of 
appropriate implement ation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal fina ncial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring t he accuracy 
and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the f inancial statements t hat give a true and fair view and are f ree f rom material 
misstatement, whether due to f raud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to cont inue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management eit her 
intends to liquidate t he Company or to cease operations, or has no rea list ic alternative but to 
do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obt ain reasonable assurance about whether the financia l st atements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and t o issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee t hat an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individua lly or in t he aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence t he economic decisions of users taken on the basis of t hese financia l statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism t hroughout t he audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess t he risks of material misstatement of the financia l statements, 
whether due to f raud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resu lting f rom 
fraud is higher t han for one resu lting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures t hat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sect ion 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsib le for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and t he operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Eva luate the appropriateness of accounting po licies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on t he audit evidence obtained, whether a materia l uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on t he Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncert ainty exists, 
we are required t o draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the f inancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opi nion. 
Our conclusions are based on t he audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern . 

• 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit fi ndings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we ident ify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
re levant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
re lationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid 

remuneration to its directors during the year. 

II. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Centra l Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" stat ement on t he matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears f rom our examination of t hose books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financia l statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Ru les, 2014; 

(e) On the basis of the written representat ions rece ived from the directors as on 31st March, 
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial cont rols over financia l reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such control s, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as on 3Pt March, 
2022 on its financial position in its financial statements. 
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ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or ent ity, including 
foreign entity (" Intermediaries" ), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company {"Ultimate Beneficiaries" ) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, t hat, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are materia l either individua lly or in the aggregate) have been received 
by the Company f rom any person or entity, including fore ign entity ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of t he Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on t he audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in t he circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement. 

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

FOR NOAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Firm Registration No.: 129486W/W100775 

Chartered Accountants 

NIRAJ D. ADATIA 
Partner 

UDIN: 22120844AZVZBN7992 

Membership No.: 120844 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : 22nd September 2022 
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ANNEXURE "A" REFERRED TO IN INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS 
OF ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

I. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

(a) 
A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full pa rticulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equ ipment 

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 

assets. 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically veri fied by the Management during the year and no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verif ication; 

(c) As per the inform at ion and explanation given t o us, lease deed and transfer formaliti es with 
respect to lease hold land included in immovable properties are yet to be executed. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as 
at 31st March, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

II . 

a. According to the informat ion and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the management has conducted physical 
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals, no material discrepancies were noted 
on the aforesa id veri fi cation. 

b. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ~ 5 crores, 
in aggregate, at any points of time duri ng the year, from banks or financial inst itutions 
on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of 
the Order is not appl ica ble. 

Ill. The Company has not made invest ments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted 

any loans or advances in the nat ure of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, f irms, 

Limit ed Liability Partnerships, and not grant ed unsecured loans to other parties, during the 

year, in respect of which: 

a. The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood 
guarant ee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting 
under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b. The company has not made any investments or provided guarantee or security to any 

other entity during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(i ii)(b) of t he Order is 

not applicabl e. 

c. The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans hence 

report ing wi th respect to repayment of principal and regular payment of interest is not 

applicable. 
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d. The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans hence 

reporting with respect to overdue amounts and steps taken by the company for the 

recovery is not applicable . 

e. There were no loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year or 
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing 
loans given to the same parties hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable 

f. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during 

the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) (f) is not applicable. 

IV. The Company has not invested or provided any loans or stood guarantee, or provided 

security to any other entity during the year. Therefore, Provision of Clause 3(iv) of the sa id 

order are not applicable t o the company. 

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 

any deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the 

Act and the Rules framed thereunder. 

VI. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 

has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub -

section (1) of the section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the 

provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company. 

VII. 

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employee state insurance, value 
added tax, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, profession tax, tax 
deducted at source, duty of customs, duty of excise and other material statutory dues, 
wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts 
were outstanding as at the last day of the financia l year for a period exceeding six 
months from the date they became payable. 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the particulars of dues of Value added Tax, as at the Balance 
Sheet date which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows : 

Name of the Period to which 

Statute 
Nature of dues the amount Amount(') 

relates (F.Y.) 
Tripura Value Section 31(1) 2013- 14 1,89,457 
Added Tax Act 
Tripura Va lue Section 31(1) 2014- 15 5,14,663 
Added Tax Act 
Tripura Value Section 31(1) 2015-16 2,74,994 
Added Tax Act 
Tripura Value Section 31(1) 2016- 17 1,99,409 
Added Tax Act 
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VIII. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 

Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

IX. 

X. 

XI. 

a. The Company has not taken any term loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence 
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of t he Order is not applicable. 

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or any lender. 

c. The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding 
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

d. The company has not raised any funds during the year hence report ing under the clause 
3(ix)(d) of the order is not applicable. 

e. The Company doesn't have any subsidiary, Joint ventures or Associates. Therefore, 
provision of clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable. 

f. The Company doesn't have any subsidiary, Joint ventures or Associates. Therefore, 
provision of clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable. 

a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convert ible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company was required to noticed 
or reported during the year. 

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. 

c. The company has not received any whistle blower complaint during the year. 

XII. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, t he Company 

is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

XIII. In our opinion, all transactions with t he related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial 

statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards; 

XIV. 

a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business. 

b. The Company is not required to appoint internal auditor as per the requ irements of the 
Companies Act, hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable. 

XV. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with him. 
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XVI. 

a. The company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. 

b. In our opinion Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing 
Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank 
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

c. The company is not a Core Investment company as defined in the regulation made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. 

d. In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the 
Core Invest ment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting 
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

XVII. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and 

the immediately preceding financia l year. 

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of th e Company during the year. 

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabil ities, other informat ion accompanying the financial 

statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 

on our examinat ion of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 

the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 

the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the fut ure viability 

of the Company. We further state t hat our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 

the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabi lities falling 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet dat e, will get discharged by the 

Company as and when they fall due. 

XX. 

a. The company is not required to spend any amount to CSR as per requirement of 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable for the year. 

b. The company does not spend any amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibil ity (CSR) 
for ongoing projects, hence reporting under clause xx (b) of the order is not appl icable. 

FOR NOAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 129486W/W100775 

NIRAJ D. ADATIA 
~/ 

Partner 

Membership No.: 120844 

UDIN: 22120844AZVZBN7992 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 22nd September 2022 
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"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Interna l Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS 

PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit ofthe lnd AS financial 
statements of the Company fo r the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over f inancial reporting cri teria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal f inancial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of rel iable 
financia l information, as requ ired under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opin ion on the Company's internal financial controls over f inancial 
report ing based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financia l Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Gu idance Note require that we comply with ethica l 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial contro ls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedu res to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operat ing effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over f inancia l reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over f inancial reporting, assessing the risk that a mat erial weakness exist s, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The procedures se lected 
depend on t he auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone lnd AS financia l statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial contro ls system over fi nancial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 



(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fai rly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2} provide reasonable assurance that transact ions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
f inancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and 
expend itures of the company are being made on ly in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and 

(3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of t he company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitat ions of internal f inancial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of col lusion or improper management override of contro ls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, project ions of any evaluation of the internal f inancial controls 
over financial reporting to fut ure periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financia l reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over fi nancia l reporting and such interna l f inancia l controls over financial report ing were operating 
effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal cont rol over financia l reporting criteria established 
by the Company, considering t he essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

FOR NOAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 

Chartered Accou ntants 

Fi rm Registration No.: 129486W/W100775 

NIRAJ D. ADATIA 

Partner 

Membership No.: 120844 

UDIN : 22120844AZVZBN7992 
Place : Mumba i 
Date : 22nd September 2022 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 st March, 2022 
Particulars Note As at As at 

No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
(~ in thousand) (~ in thousand) 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 25,138.97 26,852.60 
(b) Intangible assets 4 1,581.97 1,945.94 
(c) Financial assets 

(i) Other financial assets 6 1,144.90 983.72 
Total Non-Current assets 27,865.84 29,782.26 

Current assets 
(a) Inventories 7 11 ,611 .44 11 ,425.94 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 5 7,507.97 6,641 .84 
(ii) Trade receivables 8 2,070.25 1,789.29 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,189.05 6,525.21 
(iv) Loans 10 1,400.00 1,400.00 
(v) Other financial assets 6 2,601.71 2,618.64 

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 11 684.12 671.77 
(d) Other current assets 12 3,519.44 4 ,183.70 
Total Current Assets 36,583.98 35,256.39 
TOTAL ASSETS 64,449.82 65,038.65 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 13 2,676.00 2,676.00 
(b) Other equity 14 (71 ,659.41 1 !114,069.99! 
Total Equity (68,983.41 ) 111,393.99 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) ~Other Financial Liabilities 15 2,712.56 2,257.09 
(b) D~ e'rl""-~ "''I.x Lio.bi\\f-ie.s <.. Nd-J 16 3,932.13 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,644.69 2,257.09 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 17 
· Due to MSME 174.76 152.69 
- Due to Others 1,295.63 3,169.98 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 15 124,728.32 170.108.65 
(b) Other current liabilities 18 589.84 744.24 
Total Current Liabilities 126,788.55 174,175.55 
Total Liabilities 133,433.24 176,432.64 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 64,449.82 65,038.65 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR NOAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Firm Registration No. 129486W/W1 00775 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

NIRAJ ADATIA 
PARTNER 
Membership No. 120844 

Mumbai 
Date: 22nd September. 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

thJ, ; 
KA~~(~HAH 

Director 
DIN: 01 317352 

Mumbai 
Date: 22nd September. 2022 



A"cKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
"CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

Total Income 

II Expenses 

Particulars 

Cost Of Material Consumed 

Changes in Inventory 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 
Profiti(Loss) before Tax 

Tax Expense 
(1) Current Tax 
(2) Deferred tax (charge) I credit 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of ~ 10/- each 
(in Rupees) 

Basic 
Diluted 

Note 
No. 

19 
20 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

26 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR NOAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Firm Registration No. 129486WIW100775 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

NIRAJ ADATIA 

PARTNER 
Membership No. 120844 

Mumba1 
Date: 22nd September, 2022 

Year ended 
31st March, 2022 
(t' in thousand) 

60,523.96 
771 .69 

61 ,295.65 

9,227.14 

(2,018.60) 
455.48 

2,125.25 
5,163.68 

14,952.95 
46,342.70 

(3,932.13) 
(3,932.13) 

42,410.57 

42,410.57 

848.21 
848.21 

Year ended 
31st March, 2021 
(t' in thousand) 

16,294.67 
769.63 

17,064.30 

5,899.42 

2,682.73 
739.35 

2,091.96 
5,021.98 

16,435.44 
628.86 

628.86 

628.86 

12.58 
12.58 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

KAML~H 
Director 

DIN: 01317352 

Director 
DIN : 03140671 

Mumbai 
Date: 22nd September, 2022 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
Cash Flow Statem ent for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022 

Particu lars 

[A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profii/(Loss) before tax 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation/Amortisation/Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipments and 
Intangible Assets 
Interest Income 

Interest Expenses 
Unwinding of other financial asset 

Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments in Mutual Funds 
(Gain) I Loss on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 
Loss on redemption of Mutual Fund 
Liabilities w ritten back to the extent no longer required 

Operating Profit/(Loss) before changes In working capital 

Adjustment for (lncrease)/Decrease In Operating Assets 

Adjustments for decrease (increase) in inventories 
Adjustments for decrease (increase) in trade receivables, current 
Adjustments for decrease (increase) in other current assets 
Adjustments for other financial assets, non-current 
Adjustments for other financial assets, current 
Adjustment for Increase/( Decrease) In Operating Liabilities 

Adjustments for increase (decrease) in trade payables, current 
Adjustments for increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 
Adjustments for other financial liabilities, current 
Adjustments tor other financial liabilities, non-current 

Cash flow from operations after changes in working capital 
Net Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refunded 
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 

[B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Purchase I Proceeds from investment 

Gain on redemption of Mutual Fund 
Interest received 
Net Cash Flow from/( used In) Investing Activit ies 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net Cash Flow fromljused in) Financing Acti vities 
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period (see Note 9) 

Notes: 
1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of: 

Cash on Hands 

Balance with Banks 
Short-term investment 

Cash and Cash equivalents 
Effect of Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)lloss (Net) 

Cas h and Cash equivalents as restated 
2 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped I reclassified wherever necessary. 

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our audit report ot even date 

FOR NOAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 

(fin thousand) 
For the year ended For the year ended 31" 
31st March, 2022 March, 2021 

46,342.70 628.89 

2,125.25 2,091.95 

(123.44) (144.12) 
455.48 739.34 

(161 .18) (140.85) 
(301.11) (334.65) 

(7.02) 5.83 
(129.71) (66.2.2) 

(44,944.251 (204.74) 
3,256.72 2,575.43 

(185.50) 313.37 
(280.96) (1 ,599.02) 
671 .28 (5,071 .70) 

(0.00) (140.85) 

- 29 . .25 

(1 ,852.28) 2,067.59 
(154.39) 2,924.96 
(436.08) (800.00) 

- 379.00 

1,01 8.79 678.03 
(12.35 -

1,006.44 678.03 

(47.65) (701.73) 
(565.02) (433.73) 
129.71 66.2.2 

140.37 155.44 
(342.59 (913.80) 

- -
663.85 (235.77) 

6,525.22 6,760.99 
7,189.07 6,525.22 

650.48 709.38 
2,360.06 1,765.35 
4,178.51 4,050.48 
7,189.05 6,525.21 

7,189.05 6,525.21 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Mumbai 
Date: 22nd September, 2022 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2022 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

As at 1st April, 2020 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2021 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2022 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
Particulars 

Balance at 1st April, 2020 

Profit I {Loss) for the year 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance at 31st March, 2021 

Profit I {Loss) for the year 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance at 31st March, 2022 

Notes 

13 

Reserves and Surplus 
Retained Earnings 

(114,698.85) 

628.86 

-
(114,069.99) 

42,410.57 

-
(71,659.41) 

~in thousand 

2,676.00 

2,676.00 

2,676.00 

~ in thousand 
Total 

(114,698.85) 

628.86 

-
(114,069.99) 

42,410.57 

-
(71 ,659.41) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

FOR NOAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Firm Registration No. 129486WIW1 00775 

CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

~~ 
NIRAJADATIA ?'7 
PARTNER 
Membership No. 120844 

Mumbai 
Date: 22nd September, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

KA~~HAH 
Director 

DIN: 01317352 

Director 
DIN : 03140671 

Mumbai 
Date: 22nd September, 2022 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 1. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1 Company Overview 

1.2 

Ackruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited is an Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under 
the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged into manufacturers, buyers, sellers, traders, importers, 
exporters, merchant exporters, brokers, distributors, factors, stockiest, dealers of all kinds of high security number 
plates and to act as consultants and agents for any Government, semi-Government, or any other organization for 
all kinds of high security number plates and matters related thereto. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 22nd September, 2022 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial statements 
(i) Compliance with lnd AS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter 
referred to as the 'lnd AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 
a) Historical Cost Convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following: 
i. Certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value 
ii. Assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 

b) Current versus non- current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non current classification. 
An asset is classified as current when it is: 

Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for 
the purpose of current/ non current classification of assets and liabilities. 

c) Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional and presentation 
currency of the Company. 

II. Signi ficant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of lnd 
AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances 
of revenues. expenses. assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require 
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters 
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the 
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

2.1 REVENUE RECOGNITION 

A. Revenue from contract with customer (Applied from 1 April 2018) 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to 
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its 
revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the 
customer. 

B. Income 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

c. Others 
Revenues / Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or 

D. Profit /loss from partnership firms: 
Share of profit /loss from partnership firms is accounted in respect of the financial year of the firm, during the 
reporting period, on the basis of the audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part 
of other operating activity. 

2.2 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION I AMORTISATION 

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

B. Technical Knowhow are classified as intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated 

C. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the 
manner specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on 
sale/disposal of assets is calcu lated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such 
sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Leasehold Land 
Building 
Plant and Machinery 
Computer 
Office Equipments 
Furniture and Fixture 
Technical Knowhow 

Estimated useful life (in Years) 
60 
30 
15 
3 
5 

10 
20 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN : U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
2.3.1 Initial recognit ion 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition 
except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through 
profit or loss,are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets 

2.3.2 Subsequent measurement 
a. Non-derivative financial instruments 

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases where the Company has made an 
irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, 
the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit 

(iv) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for 
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the 
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

(v) Fair value of financial instruments 
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions 
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair 
value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of 
assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized. 

2.3.3 Derecognition of financial instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire or it transfers the finacial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A financial 
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

2.3.4 Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets 
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing 
component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses 
are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk 
from initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or 
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be 
recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

b. Non-financial assets 
i. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the 
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an 
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those 
from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset 

ii. Intangible assets 
If the carrying amount of the intangible asset is not recoverable and it exceeds its fair value, an entity would 
recognize an impairment loss. That recorded loss is based on the amount of the asset at the date it is tested 
for recoverability, whether in use or under development. The impairment loss is measured at the amount by 
which the carrying value of the intangible asset exceeds its fair value. 

2.4 TAXATION 
i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' 
as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is 
calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of 
tax paid in excess of normal income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is 
convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the Standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset 
to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

i i i. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

Deferred tax asset can be created only if there is a virtual certainty with convincing evidence (VCCE) that 
there will be sufficient future taxable income against which DTA could be realised, if this condition is not 
satisfied deferred tax for the year shall not be recognised. 

2.5 INVENTORIES 

All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 

'Cost' comprises of all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to 
the present location and condition. The costs formulae used is 'First In First Out'. 

2.6 BORROWING COSTS 
Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are 
allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during 
extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities 
are substantially complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other 
borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account. ·r' :77"--.: 

~==:::...... , ;;.C: . J r.,)~ 

~" ~ 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN : U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

2.7 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

2.8 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 
i. All transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange 
ii. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date , are converted 

in reporting currency at the closing rates of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss is 
recognized during the year in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchange rate 
prevalent on the date of the transaction. 

2.9 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, 
where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for. 

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

2.1 0. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

a. Fair value measurements and valuation processes 
Some of the company's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the 
fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. 
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the 
va luation. The Company works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate 
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 

b. Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets 
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected 
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of 
Company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed peiodically, 
including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well 
as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. 

c. Recent accounting pronouncements 

lndAS116 
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable w ith effect from 1st April, 2019. 

lnd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both 

parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. lnd AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee and 

requires the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve 

months, unless the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the 

statement of profit and loss. lnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 17. 

As per lnd AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease 

liabilities in the statement of profit and loss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will 

be adjusted against the lease liabilities. 

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect 

on adoption of IND AS 116 is expected to be insignificent. 
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 3. Property, plant and equipment (~ in thousand) 

Plant & Computers & Furniture & Office 
Total Leasehold land Building 

Machine!1 Laetoes Fixtures Eguipment 
Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 31 March, 2020 10,304.64 18,635.05 15,276.85 1,717.69 220.78 568.77 46,723.79 

Additions 659.14 32.49 10.10 701 .73 

Disposals 
Balance at 31 March, 2021 10,304.64 18,635.05 15,935.99 1,750.18 220.78 578.87 47,425.51 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 31 March, 2020 2,895.26 5,145.23 8,459.47 1,679.05 178.82 487.10 18,844.93 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 151 .21 597.34 895.91 25.43 15.50 42.60 1 727.99 

Balance at 31 March, 2021 3,046.47 5,742.57 9,355.38 1,704.48 194.32 529.70 20,572.92 

Ca rrying amount as at 31 March, 2021 7,258.17 12,892.49 6,580.61 45.69 26.46 49.17 26,852.59 

Leasehold land Building 
Plant & Computers & Furniture & Office 

Total 
Machine!1 Laetoes Fixtures Equipment 

Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 31 March, 2021 10,304.64 18,635.05 15,935.99 1,750.18 220.78 578.87 47,425.51 

Additions 28.99 18.67 47.66 

Disposals 
Balance at 31 March, 2022 10,304.64 18,635.05 15,935.99 1,779.17 220.78 597.54 47,473.17 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 31 March, 2021 3,046.47 5,742.57 9,355.38 1,704.48 194.32 529.70 20,572.92 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 151.21 597.34 929.17 33.35 15.50 34.72 1,761 .28 

Balance at 31 March, 2022 3,197.69 6,339.90 10,284.55 1,737.83 209.81 564.42 22,334.20 

Carry ing amount as at 31 March, 2022 7,106.96 12,295.15 5,651.44 
Footnotes : 

41 .33 10.97 33.12 25,138.97 

3.1 Immovable Property 
All title deeds of immovable property are in the name of the company except lease hold property. 

-· 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 4. Intangible assets 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31 March, 2020 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31 March, 2021 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 31 March, 2020 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31 March, 2021 
Net Carrying value as at 31 March, 2021 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31 March, 2021 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2022 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 31 March, 2021 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2022 
Net Carrying value as at 31st March, 2022 

(~ in thousand) 

Technical Knowhow 

7,455.35 

7,455.35 

5,145.44 

363.97 
5,509.41 
1,945.94 

7,455.35 

7,455.35 

5,509.41 

363.97 
5,873.38 
1,581.97 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 5. Investments 

Current 
(Quoted at Fair Value) 
(Trade, unless otherwise specified) 
Investments in Mutual Funds 
IDFC Super Saver IF MT Plan 
88676.4040 Units (As at 31st March, 2021 , 1,29,176.4040 units) 
L & T Short Term Income Fund Growth 

(Nil ,{As at 31st March ,2021, 15,772.3400 units) 
Templeton Short Term Income Plan -Growth 
(12.3370 units,(As at 31st March ,2021 , 132.0690 units) 

Templeton Short Term Income Plan - Segregated 
( 445.2400 Units, (As at 31st March ,2021 , Nil) 

Tata Balanced Advantage Fund Growth 
(2,24,812.0620 units,(As at 31st March ,2021 , Nil) 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
(t in thousand) 

4,121 .04 

58.14 

39.12 

3,289.67 

7,507.97 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
(t in thousand) 

5,765.14 

349.67 

527.03 

6,641 .84 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 st March, 2022 

Note 6. Other financial assets 

Non-current 
Security deposit 

Total 

Current 
Security deposits 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 

Total 

Note 7. Inventories 

Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
Raw Material at Site 
Inventories of Number Plates 

Total 

Note 8. Trade Receivables 

Current 
Trade Receivables 
Trade Receivables from related parties 
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 
Trade receivables - credit impaired 

Less - Loss Allowances 

Note 9. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
In current accounts 

Total 

in deposit with maturity of less than three months 
Cash on hand 

Total 
Footnote: 
Balances with bank as deposits are kept as security for gurantees I other facilities. 

As at 

31st March, 2022 
(~In thousand) 

1,144.90 
1,144.90 

2,600.00 
1.71 

2,601 .71 

3,995.58 
7,615.86 

11,611 .44 

2,070.25 

1,382.49 

3,452.74 
(1 ,382.49) 
2,070.25 

2,360.06 
4,178.51 
650.48 

7,189.05 

As at 

31st March, 2021 
(tIn thousand) 

983.72 

983.72 

2,600.00 
18.64 

2,618.64 

5,828.68 
5,597.26 

11 ,425.94 

1,789.29 

1,382.49 

3,171.78 
(1,382.49) 
1,789.29 

1,765.35 
4,050.48 

709.38 
6,525.21 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31s t March, 2022 

Note 10. Loans 

Current 
Loans to related parties (Refer Note 27) 

Unsecured, considered good 

Total 

tgures F h C ort e urrent R p . d eporting eno 

Borrower 

Promoters 
Directors 
KMPs 
Related Parties 

Total 

tgures F or Prevtous R eportmg p . d eno 

Borrower 

Promoters 
Directors 
KMPs 

Related Parties 
Total 

Note 11. Current tax assets 

Income tax Asset 

Total 

Note 12. Other assets 

Current 
Advance to Suppliers 
Advance to Others 

Other Advances 

Input Tax Credit 

Total 

As at 

31st March, 2022 
('( In thousand) 

1,400.00 

1,400.00 

Amount of loan or 
advance 
outstanding 

('(in thousand) 

-
-
-

1,400.00 
1,400.00 

Amount of loan or 
advance 
outstanding 

( '( in thousand) 

-
-
-

1,400.00 
1,400.00 

684.12 

684.12 

1,581.88 

12.75 

1,924.83 
3,519.44 

As at 

31st March, 2021 
('(In thousand) 

1,400.00 

1,400.00 

•;. to Total Loan or 
Advance 

-
-
-

100.00 
100.00 

%to Total Loan or 
Advance 

-
-
-

100.00 
100.00 

671.77 

671.77 

2.216.39 

11.75 

1,955.56 

4,183.70 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN : U51909MH1999PTC176073 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 
Note 8. Trade Receivable 

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction 
Particulars Less than 6 6 months to 1 More than 3 

months year 
1 - 2 years 2 -3 years 

years 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1,198.40 529.89 850.35 874.11 
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired - - - -

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - -

1 ' 198.40 529.89 850.35 874.11 
Less : Allowance for credit loss 
Total Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2022 

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction 
Particulars Less than 6 6 months to 1 More than 3 

months year 
1 - 2 years 2-3 years 

years 
i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 1,821 .06 331 .19 1,019.53 -
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired - - - -

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired - - - -

1,821 .06 331 .19 1,019.53 -
Less : Allowance for credit loss 
Total Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2021 

0 ' 

(~ in thousand) 

Total 

- 3,452.74 
- -
- -
- -
- 3,452.74 

1,382.49 
2,070.25 

(~ in thousand) 

Total 

- 3,171 .78 
- -
- -
- -
- 3,171.78 

1,382.49 
1,789.29 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 13. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
Class A 
7,500,000 (As at 31st March, 2021 : 75,00,000; ) Equity Shares of ~ 10/- each 

Class B 
1 ,500,000 (As at 31st March, 2021: 15,00,000; ) Equity Shares of { 10/- each 

Preference Shares 
100,000 (As at 31st March, 2021 : 1 ,00,000; ) Preference Shares of ~ 100/- each 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
Class A 
50,000 (As at 31st March, 2021 : 50,000; ) Equ1ty Shares of { 10/- each fully paid 
up 
Class B 
17,600 (As at 31st March, 2021 : 17,600; ) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each fully paid 
up 
Preference Shares 
20,000 (As at 31st March, 2021 : 20,000; ) 9% Cumulative Convertible Preference 
Shares of ~ 100 each 

Total 

(a) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 

Class A 
Balance at 1st April, 2020 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2021 
Add : Issued during the period 
Less : Bought back during the period 

Balance at 31st March, 2022 

Class B 
Balance at 1st April, 2020 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2021 
Add : Issued during the period 
Less : Bought back during the period 

Balance at 31st March, 2022 

Preference Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2020 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back dunng the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2021 
Add : Issued during the period 
Less : Bought back during the period 

Balance at 31st March, 2022 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
(~ In thousand) 

75,000.00 

15,000.00 

10,000.00 

500.00 

176.00 

2,000.00 

2,676.00 

Number of shares 
(Nos) 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

17,600 

17,600 

17,600 

20,000 

20,000 

20,000 

) 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ In thousand) 

75,000.00 

15,000.00 

10,000.00 

500.00 

176.00 

2,000.00 

2,676.00 

Share Capital 
~ In thousand) 

500.00 

500.00 

500.00 

176.00 

176.00 

176.00 

2,000.00 

2,000.00 

2,000.00 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1 999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 
Equity (Class 'A') : 
Class 'A' equity shares are having par value of ~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 

Equity (Class 'B') : 
Class 'B' shares does not have any right to vote or participate in the distribution of profits or capital. 

9% Cumulative Convertible Preference shares : 
The Preference Shares of the Company shall be converted into fully paid equity shares of the Company on or after 1st April, 2012 
or on such other date as may be decided by Board of Directors of the Company by exercising a call option vested in the Company 
for conversion of the Preference Shares on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem fit. The company has 
not exercised the ca ll option till the balancesheet date. Dividend shall be payable on face value of the share and not on the issue 
price. 

Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

As at 31st March 2022 
No of shares held o;. holding 

Equity (Class 'A') 
Hubtown Limited 
KushaiH. Shah 
Khilen V. Shah 
Rushank V. Shah 

36,215 
3,438 
3.438 
3,437 

72.43% 
6.88% 
6.88% 
6.87% 

As at 31st March 2022 
No of shares held % holding 

Equity (Class 'B') 
Samar'! S.A. 

Total 
17,600 
17,600 

100% 
100% 

As at 31st March 2022 
No of shares held "/o holding 

Preference Shares 
Hubtown Limited 

Total 

Note 14. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings : 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the period 

Nature and purpose of the reserves: 

20,000 
20,000 

100% 
100% 

As at 31st March, 2021 
No of shares held % holding 

36,215 
3,438 
3.438 
3,437 

72.43% 
6.88% 
6.88% 
6.87% 

As at 31st March, 2021 
No of shares held % holding 

17,600 
17,600 

100% 
100% 

As at 31st March, 2021 
No of shares held 

As at 

20,000 
20,000 

31st March 2022 
(~in thousand) 

(114,069.99) 
42,410.57 

(71 ,659.41) 

% holding 

100% 
100% 

As at 
31st March 2021 
(~ in thousand) 

(114,698.85) 
628.86 

(114,069.99) 

Retained Earnings represents Surplus/ accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to the 
shareholders. 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Cl N: U51909MH1999PTC176073 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

17. Trade payables 

F igures F h C or t e urrent R eportmg p . d eno 
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction 

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years 
Undisputed MSME 169.95 3.36 1.45 -
Disputed MSME - - - -
Undisputed Others 679.95 10.70 80.82 524.16 
Disputed Others - - - -
Total 

1gures F p or reVIOUS R rt· P . d epo mg eno 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction 
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years 

Undisputed MSME 151.23 1.46 - -
Disputed MSME - - - -
Undisputed Others 2 346.36 299.46 6.75 517.41 
Disputed Others - - - -
Total 

(~ · m thousand) 
31st March, 2022 

Total 
174.76 

-
1 295.63 

-
1,470.39 

31st March, 2021 
Total 

152.69 
-

3 169.98 
-

3,322.66 

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 : The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified 
on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act. The 
overdue principal amounts outstanding to the extent ~ 1,74,757/- (P.Y- ~ 1 ,52,682) are payable to such vendors at the 
Balance Sheet date and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 



ACKRUTl SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 15. Other financial liabilities 

Non-current 
Security deposits (Refundable) 

Total 

Current 
Business Advances from related party (Refer Footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 
31 st March, 2022 

~In thousand) 

2,712.56 
2,712.56 

124,728.32 
124,728.32 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

~ in thousand) 

2,257.09 
2,257.09 

170 108.65 
170,108.65 

i) The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which 
the Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call / demand as the repayment period of 
such amounts so received is not measureable precisely. 

ii) During the year Company has written back Interest payable amounting to Rs. 4,48,80,332 1- pertaining to the financial year 
2012-13 & 2013-14. 

Note 16. Deferred Tax ba lances (Net) 

The following is the analysis of deferred tax (asset) / liabilities presented in the balance sheet 

Oeffered Tax Liability 4.412.23 
Deferred Tax Asset _____ -->..(4..:..:8:..:0;.:...1'-'0:.L) ________ _ 

Total ______ 3~,9_3_2_.1_3 ________ _ 

2021-22 

Deferred tax liabilities I (assets) in relation to: 

On account of Depreciation 

On account of Security Deposit 

On account of Others 

No te 17. Trade payables 

Dues to MSME (Refer Footnote) 
Less than 1 year 
1-2 years 
2-3 years 
More than 3 years 

Dues to others 
Less than 1 year 
1-2 years 
2-3 years 
More than 3 years 

Tota l 

Total 

Opening Balance Recognised In Profit Closing Balance 
and loss account 

4 ,158.16 
254.07 

(456.11) 

(23.99) 
3,932.13 

169.95 
3.36 
1.45 

679.95 
10.70 
80.82 

524.16 
1,470.39 

4,158.16 
254.07 

(456.11) 

(23.99) 
3,932.13 

151.23 
1.45 

2,346.36 
299.46 

6.75 
517.41 

3,322.66 

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under Micro Small Medium Enterprises Oevelopment Act, 
2006 : The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified 
on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act. The 
overdue principal amounts outstanding to the extent ~ 1,74,757/- (P.Y- ~ 1,52,682) are payable to such vendors at the 
Balance Sheet date and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 18. Other current liabilities 
Current 

Advance from customers 
Other payables : 

Others 
Statutory Dues 

Total 

381 .64 

175.44 
32.76 

589.84 

236.95 

469.17 
38.12 

744.24 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 19. Revenue from operations 

Sale from operations : 
Income from Security Plates 

Other operating revenue : 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer 
required (Refer Footnote) 

Total 
Footnote: 
Includes written back of Interest payable amounting to Rs. 4,48,80,332/-

Note 20. Other income 

Interest Income: 
-Interest Received on Bank Fixed Deposits 
-On Unwinding of other financial asset 
-Others 

Other gains and losses : 
-Gain on Investments classified at FVTPL 
- Gain on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 
- Gain on redemption of Mutual Fund 

Miscellaneous income 
Total 

Note 21 . Cost of Material Consumed 
Opening Stock 
Raw Material Purchases 

Closing Stock Of Raw Material 
Raw Materials Consumed 

A 
B 

TOTAL (A+B) 
c 

TOTAL (A+B-C) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2022 
(t' In thousand) 

15 579.71 
15,579.71 

44,944.25 

44,944.25 
60,523.96 

123.44 
161.18 
42.60 

327.22 

301 .11 
7.02 

129.71 
437.84 

6.63 
771.69 

5,828.68 
7,394.04 

13,222.72 
3,995.58 
9,227.14 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2021 
(t' In thousand) 

16,089.93 
16,089.93 

204.74 

204.74 
16,294.67 

144.12 
140.85 
83.79 

368.76 

334.65 

66 .. 22 
400.87 

769.63 

3,459.32 
8,268.78 

11,728.10 
5,828.68 
5,899.42 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 22. Changes In Inventory 
Finished Stock: 
Opening Stock Of Number Plates 
Less: Closing Stock Of Number Plates 

Note 23. Finance Costs 
Interest costs:-

Total 

Unwinding of Security Deposit 
Delayed and Penal Interest 

Total 

Note 24 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 
Amortization of intangible assets 

Total 

Note 25. Other Expenses 
Bank Charges 
Travelling Expenses 
Security Charges 
Rates and Taxes 
Carriage Outward 
Repairs & Mainteance (Machinery) 
Repairs & Mainteance (Others) 
Professional Fees 
Foreign Exchange Loss 
Other expenses (refer footnote) 

Total 

Footnote : 
Auditor's Remuneration (Included in other expenses above) 

- Audit fees 
Total 

Note 26. Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic Earnings Per Share 
Diluted Earnings Per Share • 

Basic EPS 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2022 
(tIn thousand) 

5.597.26 
7 615.86 

(2,018.60) 

455.48 

455.48 

1,761.28 
363.97 

2,125.25 

0.96 
90.16 

324.00 
31 .84 

1,083.29 
463.84 

28.06 
1,292.64 

1,848.89 
5,163.68 

75,000 
75,000 

848.21 
848.21 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2021 
(t In thousand) 

8,279.99 
5,597.26 
2,682.73 

379.00 
360.35 
739.35 

1,727.99 
363.97 

2,091.96 

0.74 
32.99 

324.00 
30.« 

880.58 
5.00 

38.82 
1,670.21 

5.83 
2 033.37 
5,021.98 

75.000 
75,000 

12.58 
12.58 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as 
follows 

ProfiU(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic 
and diluted earnings per share 

Diluted EPS 

42,41 0.57 
50,000 

628.86 
50,000 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as 
follows 
ProfiU(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic 
and diluted earnings per share 

42,410.57 
50,000 

628.86 
50,000 

For the purpose of diluted EPS convertible instruments (9% cumulative convertible preference shares) are deemed to be 
converted on the first day of the previous year. The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value basis. 

• 9% cumulative convertible preference shares could potentially dilute basic earnings per share, hence are not included in the 
calculation of diluted earnings per share, because they are antidilutive for the period presented. oauted EPS is restricted to 
the amount of Basic EPS to the extent the conversion of convertible instruments prove to be anti dHutive. 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 27. Related Party Disclosures (As per IND AS . 24) 

A. Name of the related parties and related parties relationship 
Holding Company Hubtown Um1ted 

II Fellow Subsidiary Companies Citygold Education Research Limited (Heddle Knowledge Private Limited) 

Ill Key Managerial Personnel Kamlesh Shah 

Footnote: 
Related party relationship are tdenbfied by the Company and rehed upon by the Auditors 

B. Transaction with Related Parties -

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Transaction 

Business Advance given/repaid/adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 

II On behalf payments made (including reimbursement of 
expenses) 
Kamlesh Shah 

Iii On behalf payments received/adjusted 
Kamlesh Shah 

Footnote: 
PreVIOUs Year figures are g1ven 1n bracJ<ets 

Balances outstanding 

Balance Payables 
Hublown L1m1ted 

Kamlesh Shah 

Balance Receivables 

Holding 
Company 

45,380 33 
(80000) 

(·) 

(·) 

Cltygold Education Research L1m1ted (lleddle Knowledge Pnvate L1m11ed) 

Fellow Subsidiary 
Companies 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

Key Management 
Personnel of the 

Entity 

As at 

(· ) 

208.27 

(436.94) 

208.26 

(443.94) 

31st March, 2022 

124,728.32 

0.0 1 

1,400.00 

(\'in thousand) 
Firm In which 
Company Is a 

partner 

As at 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

31st March, 2021 

170, 108 65 

1,400 00 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1 999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 st March, 2022 

Note 28. Contingent Liability 

The Company does not have any contingent liability as at the balance sheet date as certified by the management and relied upon by the 
auditors, as otherwise mentioned below: 

Sr. No. Particulars 

Tripura Value Added Tax matters pending u/s 31 (1) (Refer Footnote) 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st March 2022 
~ In thousand) 

1,178.52 

As at 
31St March, 2021 
~In thousand) 

1.178.52 

The company has received Tripura VAT orders dated 3oth July, 2018 under section 31(1) of Tripura Value Added Tax Act, 2004. The Company 
has filed appeal with higher authorities against the demand raised in the respective orders. The assessment year Breakup is as follows : 
Assessment Year Tax Liability 

2013-14 189.46 
2014-15 514.66 
2015-16 274.99 
2016-17 199.41 
TOTAL 1,178.52 
Further 1nterest I penalty that may accrue on original demands are not ascertainable, at present. The Company has taken necessary steps to 
protect its position with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on professional / legal advice, are not sustainable. 
The Company does not have any contingent liability as at balance sheet date, other than stated above, as certified by management & relied upo1 
by the auditors. 

Note 29. Disclosure Of Derivatives 

FOREIGN CURRENCY ON HAND 

USD 
Equivalent INR in thousand 

Not e 30. Capital Management 

As at 
31st Mar ch 2022 

2,750 
208.33 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

2,750 
201.32 

The entity manages its capital to ensure that the enbty will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders 
through optimisation of debt equity ratio. 
The capital structure ot the entity consists of net debt ( Borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company. 

Note 31. Financial Risk Management Objectives 
The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's management oversees the management of these risks. 
The company's board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

i ) Market Risk 
Interest rate risk 

Company has received intrest free advances and 1t receives interest free funds for its operating cash flow from its holding company as and when 
required (Refer note 15). hence the Company is not exposed to interest risk. 

ii) Credit Risk 
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company 
penodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counter parties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic 
trends. and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. 

iii) Liquidity r isk 
The companies cashflow reqUirement are met by funds received from 1ts holding company 

Note 32. Loans and advances, other receivables, Trade receivables ,Trade payables and other current liability are subject to confirmations 
and are considered receivable I payable as the 
Note 33. The accumulated losses of the company have resulted In complete erosion of the net worth of the company. The Company's 
management is hOONever of the view that the same erosion is temporary in nature as the company shall recover the same in future years. 

Note 34. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Inventories and Loans and Advances continues to 
have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022 

Note 35. Ratios 
The ratios for the years ended March 31 2022 and March 31 2021 are as follows · 

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31st March, 2022 

i) Current Ratio Times Current assets Current liabilities 0.29 

ii) Debt Equity Ratio Times Total Net Debt Shareholder's Equity -
iii) Debt Service Coverage Earnings available for 
Ratio Times debt service Debt Service -
iv) Return on Equity Percentage Average 
(ROE) • Net Profits after taxes Shareholder's Equity -
v) Inventory turnover ratio 

Times Revenue Inventory 1.34 
vi) Trade receivables Average Trade 
turnover ratio Times Revenue Receivable 8.07 
vii) Trade payables 
turnover ratio Purchases of services Average Trade 

Times and other expenses Pavables 5.16 
viii) Net capital turnover 
ratio Times Revenue Working Capital 2.89 
ix) Net profit ratio Percentage 

Profit After Tax Revenue 69.19% 
x) Return on capital Percentage Earning before 
employed (ROCE) • interest and taxes Capital Employed -
xi) Return on 
lnvestment(ROI) 
Unquoted Percentage Income generated Time weighted 

from Investments average investments -
Quoted Percentage Income generated Time weighted 

from investments average investments 6.09% 

· This ratios cannot be ascertained as shareholders equity on net worth is negative 

.• . 

31st March, 2021 Variance Reasons ( If Variance More 
Than 25 %) 

Due to Increase in Current 
Assets & decrease in Current 

0.20 42.55% Liabilities 

- - -

- - -
- - -

1.41 -4.72% -

16.26 -50.34% Due to Decrease in Income 

5.94 -13.14% -
Due to Increase in Total 

0.62 365.91 % Income 
Due to Increase in Total 

3.69% 1777.49% Income & Profit 

- - -
-

- - -

6.41 % -4.94% -
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 202: 

Balance Sheet as at 31 st March, 2022 
Note 36. Categories of Financial Instruments 
Fair Value measurement 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 
Investment 
Loans 
Trade Receivables 
Other financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalent 
Total of Financial Assets 

Financial Liabi lities 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other Financial liabilities 
Total of Financial Liabilities 

Note: There are no instruments that have been dasified as FVTOCI. 

Fair Value hierarchy 

31st March 2022 
FVPTL Amort.ised Cost 

7,507.97 -
- 1,400.00 
- 2,070.25 

- 3 746.61 
- 7 189.05 

7,507.97 14,405.91 

- -
- 1,470.39 
- 127 440.87 
- 128,911 .26 

( ~ in thousand) 
31st March 2021 

FVPTL Amortised Cost 

6 641.84 -
- 1 400.00 

- 1 789.29 
- 3,602.36 
- 6,525.21 

6,641.84 13,316.86 

- -
- 3 322.66 

- 172 365.74 

- 175,688.40 

This section explains the judgements and estimates in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured 
at fair value 
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fai r value -

Level 1 Level 2 Levell Total 
recurring fair value measurements 
At 31st March ,2022 
Financial Assets 
Financial Investments at FVPL 
Investments in Mutual Fund 7 507.97 - - 7,507.97 
Total Financial Assets 7,507.97 - - 7,507.97 
At 31st March, 2021 
Financial Assets 
Financial Investments at FVPL 6,641 .84 - - 6,641.84 
Investments in Mutual Fund 
Total Financial Assets 6,641 .84 - - 6,641.84 

Level 1 
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in adive markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement 
date. 
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CIN: U51909MH1999PTC176073 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 202: 

Note 37. Other statutory information for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 Marc h 2021: 

i) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii) The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

iii) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

iv) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or 
(b) provide any guarantee. security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficia ries. 

v) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

vi) The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961). 

vii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government or any Government authority or other 
lender in current financial year, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 

viii) The proviso to Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, is not 
applicable to the company 

ix) The Company does not have any transaction during the current financial year with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

Note 38. Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified whereever necessary. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

FOR NOAA & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Firm Registration No. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

NIRAJ ADATIA 
PARTNER 
Membership No. 120844 

Mumbai 
Date: 22nd September, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~SHAH 

Mumbai 
Date: 22nd September, 2022 



SANKET R SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 
The Members of 
Citywood Builders Private Limited 
Report on the Audit of the financial statements 

Opinion: 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Citywood Builders Private 
Limited ("the Company"), which compnses the Balance Sheet as at 31 51 March, 2022, 
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes 
to the lnd AS financial statements mcluding a summary of the sign,ficant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "lnd AS financial 
statement") . 

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act") in the n anner so requ1red and give a true and fair view m 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lnd1a, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31st March 2022 and 1ts financial performance including other 
comprehensive income and the statemP-'lt of changes in equity for the year ended on that 
a ate. 

Basis fo r Opinion: 
We corducted our audit in accordance With the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(1 0) of the Com pan es Act, 2013 Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the lnd AS 
financial statements section of our re;)ort We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics ISS-Jed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
lnd1a together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the lnd AS 
financial statements under the prov1s1o'1s of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fu lfi lled our oti-Jer ethical responsibilities 1n accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Eth1cs We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropnate to orov1de a bas1s for our opin1on. 

Emphasis of Matter: 
1. Attention is invited to Note No. _ 1 (A) of the financial statements with regardmg 

recognition of expense for ongomg projects wh1ch is based upon estimated project 
costs, as per the JUdgment of the 1anagement, which have been relied upon by us, 
these being technical matters 

2. Attention is invited to Note No 32 of the financial statements with regard to reliance 
placed by the auditors on certlfica . on received from the management w1th regard to 
the disclosure of contingent liablht•Es g1ven by the Company 

the financ1al statements with regards to 
~-;-;-~-..... 

ciliat1on and adjustments if any 

Office : 25. 8 Wmg, 2nd Floor. New Happy Hon:e. Tilak Road, Opp~el Gurukrupa, Ghatkopar (East), Mumbai- 400077. 
Mob. : +91 9022469464 • Ema1l : srshahandasso@gmail.com I casanketrshah@gmail.com 
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4. Attention is invited to Notes the : ompany has not charged mterest on loans and 
advances given to various entities in which the Company has a bU$i11ess interest. 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the matters . 

Other Information : 
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 
informat1on. The other info:-mat1on compnses the mformation mcluded in the D1rector's 
Report but does r.ot include the lnd AS financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. The Director's Report is expectt:d to be made available to us after the date of this 
auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the lnd AS financ1al statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclus1on thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the lnd P.S financial statements, our responsib ility is to read 
the other information identified above vVhen 1t becomes available and, in doing so 
consider whether the other information 1s matenally inconsistent with the lnd AS financial 
statements or our knowledge obtamed 11 the audit or otherw1se appears to be materially 
m1sstated. 

Management's and Board of Director's Responsibility for the lnd AS financial 
statements: 
The Company's Board of Directors 1s rao:;ponsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparat1on of these lnd AS financ1al statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial pos1t1on. fi nancial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the ac' ounting principles generally accepted in India. 
Including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 201 4. 

Th1s responsibility also includes the .-.,amtenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Ad for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other 1rregulant1es. select1on and 
application of appropriate implementatl') and mamtenance of accountmg policies, making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent. and design, implementation 
and mamtenance of adequate internal for anc1al controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completerv>ss of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the In<. AS financial statements that give a true and fair 
v1ew and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

In preparing the lnd AS financial stat~ments , the Board of Directors •s responsible for 
assessing the Company's abi lity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and L 5 ng the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Board of Directors either intends t.... 1quidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so 
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The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Aud1t of the lnd AS financial statements: 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financ1al 
statements as a whole are free from m'l erial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a htgh 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstaternent when tt extsts Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered matenal tf, tndtvidually or tn the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decistons of users taken on the basis of 
these lnd AS financial statements 

As part of an audit in accordance w th SAs we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism througiout the audtt We also 

• Identi fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, destgn and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtat'l audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opmton -rhe risk of not detecttng a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher thar for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omtss1ons, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of mterna control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audtt procedures that are appropriate 1n the circumstances Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responstble for expressmg our opinion on whether the company 
has adequate internul financtal -:::ontrols system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of ac~ounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related d1csclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audtt evidence obtained whether a m.1terial uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast s1gnificant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a gomg ccrcern If we concluc!e that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the lnd AS financtal cstatements or, 1f such dtsclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclustons are based on the audtt evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor's report Ho~:1ever. future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to ce~se to continue as a qotng concern. 



( 

( 

( 

' 

• Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the lnd AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the lnd AS financia l statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events 1n a menner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with those charged w1th governance regarding, among other matters. 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with go1.1 ernance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements reoarding Independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
Independence, and where applicable re ated safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
1. As required by the Compan1es (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 1ssued by the Central 

Government of lnd1a in terms of sert1on 143(1 1) of the Act, and on the basis of such 
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropnate and 
according to the information and explanation given to us. we give in Annexure - 1 a 
statement on the matters specified 1r paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2 (A) As required by section 143(3) o he Act. we report that. 
a) We have sought a11d obtained all the 1nformat1on and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears frJm our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Profit 1'ld Loss Statement, and the Cash flow statement 
dealt with by th1s Report are 1n agreement w1th the books of account and returns. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards spec1fied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. 

e) On the basis of written representations rece1ved from the Directors as on 
31st March, 2022, tc:.ken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors 
1s disqualified as on 31st March "2022, from being appointed as a Director in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Act 

f) With respect to the adequac, of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and tt1e operat1ng effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in Annexur~ - 2 to this report 
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(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

(i) The Company has no pend•r g litigations in the financial statements. 

(ii) The Company did not have long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any m"lterial foreseeable losses. 

(iii) There were no amounts whch were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fu11d by the Company. 

(iv) 
a. No funds have been ad '. anced or loaned or mvested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premiur- or any other sources or kind of fur.ds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries ), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, tl1at the Intermediary shall , whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest n other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on b~1alf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

b. No funds have been rP:e1ved by the Company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies) , including ore1gn entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded 1n wntmg or otherw1se, that the Company 
shall , whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behC.~ If of the Ultin ate Beneficiaries; and 

c. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the ci rcuMstances; nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) 
contain any materia l mis-statement. 

d. The company has not declared or paid dividend du~ing the year in 
compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 201 3. 
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3. With respect to the matter to be Included in the Auditor's Report under Section 
197(16) of the Act: 
Since the Company is a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Section 197 of the 
Act are not applicable. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other 
detai ls under Section 197(16) of the: Act which are required to be commented upon by 
us. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accou ntants 
FRN: 135703W 

Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place : Mumbai 
Date :2nd September, 2022 

UDIN: 22152369BBOJZA3879 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AU DITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in our Report of even date :>n Accounts for the year ended 31 51 March, 2022 
of Citywood Bui lders Private Limited) 

In our opinion, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we 
considered appropriate and accord1ng to the information and explanations given to us 
during the normal course of audit, wh1c'1 were necessary to the best of our knowledge and 
bel1ef, we report that: 

(1) (a) (A) The company has ma1nta1ned proper records showmg full particulars. 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) As per the information and explanation prov1ded to us the Company does 
not own any intangible assets 

(b) The management has phys1cal ly verif1ed the Property Plant and Equipment at 
reasonable intervals. Accord1rg to the information and explanations given to us . 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) As per the information, explanation provided and verified by us, the title deeds 
of all the immovable propert1es as disclosed 1n the financ1al statements are held 
in the name of the company 

(d) As per the information. expl1'1ation provided and verified by us, the company 
has not revalued its Prope ,, Plant and Equ1pment (including Right of Use 
assets) during the year Hence. no further disclosure 1s requ1red in this regard. 

(e) As per the information and explanation provided to us, no proceedings have 
been initiated or are pend1 tg against the company for holding any benami 
property under the Benam1 Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and rules made thereunder hence no further disclosure is requ1red in this 
regard. 

(i1) (a) The inventory h<ls been physically verified at reasonable intervals during the 
year by the Management In our opinion the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the management is appropnate. there were no discrepancies 
noticed during the verif1cat1or 

(b, As per the information and explanation provided and verified by us, the 
company's working cap1tal 111ts has been renewed durintl the year under 
review by the Bank, in excess of five crores on the basis of security of assets 
including current assets Tne quarterly returns or statements filed by the 
company with such bank are 1n '3greement with the books of account of the 
Company. 
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(iii) (a) As per the information, expla 'lation provided and verified by us, during the year, 
the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or 
security or granted any loans or advances rn the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies frrms, Lrmrted Lrabrlity Partnerships or any other 
parties, hence, no further reporting rs required under clause (iii)(a) and (iii )(b). 

(b) As per the information, expla'latron provrded and verified by us, as the company 
has not advanced any loanc. and advances in the nature of loans, no further 
reporting is required under claJse {iir )(c), (iii)( d). (iir)(e) and (iii)(f). 

(iv) According to the information, explanation provided and verified by :Js, the provisions 
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 rn respect of loans, 
investments, guarantees, and secu rty. have been com:;>lied wrth by the company. 

(v) According to the information, explanation provided and venfied by us, the company 
has not accepted any deposrt rncluding deemed deposit under section 73 to 76 or 
any other relevant pruvision of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed, hence no 
further disclosure required in this regard. 

(vr) The Central Government has rot prescrrbed marntenance cost records under 
subsection (1) of Section 148 of the Companres Act, 2013. Hence, no further 
disclosure required in this regards 

(vii) (a) The extent of arrears of statutory dues outstanding includ111g interest at the 
balance sheet date, for a period exceeding srx months from the date they 
become payable and the deta s of outstanding as follows 

Sr. No. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

-
Parti culars 
-

Tax DedLcted at Sour :e (TDS) Liabilrty 

(GST) Liability Goods and Service T2 

Interest on previous y ear statutory liability 

tory Liability Total Statu 
-

~ Amount in INR 

2,94,887/-

26,25,796/-

3,19,201 /-

32,39,884/- 1 

(b) On the basis of our examrna.ron of documents and records of the Company, 
and explanation provrded to s there were drsputed dues in respect of Income 
Tax as at the Balance Sheet c ate which have not been deposited on account of 
a dispute are as follows: 
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Name of Section Financial 
Statue Year 

Income 143(3) 2009-10 
Tax Act, 

1961 

Disputed Amount 
Paid 

(in INR) 

Dues 

(in INR) 

1,5313 25 0. Nil _, 

Balance 
Disputed Dues 

(in INR) 

1.53.13.250/-

Details of Pending 
Proceedings 

The proceedings before 
High Court (Preferred by 
Department) 

- ----+- ---
Income 2718 2010-1 1 
Tax Act, 

1961 

1,00,000 /- I 1 ,oo,ooot- Nil The proceedings before 
Commissioner of Income 
tax (Appeals). 

--'- l 
(vni) According to the records of the COI"'lpany, the information and explanations provided 

to us and based on the procedure earned out by us during the course of our audit , no 
transactions were recorded 1n the books of account wh1ch have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year 1n the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43of1961). 

(1x) (a) According to the information explanation provided and verified by us, the 
company has defaulted 1n repayment of term loans from bank and interest 
thereon, details of the same are as per note 16 (c). 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our audit procedures we report that the company has not been declared a 
wilful defaulter by any bark or financial Institution or government or any 
government authority 

(c) According to the information explanation provided and verified by us, the 
company has applied the ten 1 loans for the purpose for which the loans were 
obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the lnd AS finandal 
statements of the company, we report that no funds ra1sed on short-term basis 
have been used for long-term purposes by the company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the lnd AS financial statements of the company, we report that 
the company does not have :.my subsidiaries. associates or joint ventures and 
accordingly, accordingly the reporting for clause (1x)(e) and (ix)(f) is not 
applicable. 

(x) (a) According to records of the ompany examined by us the company has not 
raised any money by way of nitial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year, hence no further disclosure requ1red in this 
regard. 
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(b) According to records of the company examined by us, the company has not 
made Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures during the year; hence 
disclosure regarding compliance of requ irements of section 42 and section 62 
of the Companies Act, 2013 1s applicable . 

(x1) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true 
and fair view of the lnd AS financial statements and according to the 
information and explanations given by management, we report that no fraud on 
the company or by the office or employees of the company has been noticed 
or reported during the year 

(b) No report under sub-sect1on (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
fi led by the auditors in Form ADT -4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
received any whistle-blower comolaint during the concerned year; hence no 
further disclosure is requ1red m this regard. 

(xii) According to recordf of the Co1 pany, the Company is not covered under the 
category of Nidhi Cornpany and therefore reporting under the clause 3(xii) of the 
order is not applicable to the Company 

(xlii ) According to the information explonat1on provided and records examined by us, the 
provision of section 177 of the companies Act 2013 for establ ishment of audit 
committee is not applicable to the r ompany 

According to the information and explanations g1ven to us, the Company has 
complied with Section 188 of Compan1es Act, 2013, wherever applicable, in respect 
of all transactions with related pa rt1es and the details have been disclosed in the lnd 
AS financial statements as requ1red by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by 
us the internal audit is not appllcab1e to the company during the concerned year. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion during 
the year the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its 
Directors or persons connected w1th its Directors and hence provisions of section 
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company 

(xv1) The Company is not requ1red to be registered under Sect1on 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act. 1934 (2 of 1934). Hence, no furthe;- disclosure is required in this 
regard. 

(xvii) As per the information and explanation g1ven to us and records examined by us, the 
company has incurred cash losse~ n the financial year. 
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(xviii)There has been no resignation of t.,e statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly 
Clause 3(xvii i) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xrx) According to ·(he information and explanations grven to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabili ties otrer rnformation accompanyrng the lnd AS financial 
statements. our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to bel1eve that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabil ities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date We. however. state that th1s is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the company 

We further state that our report1ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 
the company as and when they tal due 

(xx) The provisions related to sectior 135 of the companies Act, 2013 regarding the 
Corporate Social Responsibility 1s not applicable to the company hence no further 
disclosure is required in this regard 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 2nd September, 2022 

UDIN: 22152369880JZA3879 



Annexure - 2 to our report of even date 
Re: Citywood Builders Private Limited ("the Company") 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal fmanc12l controls over financial reporting of Citywood 
Builders Private Limited ("the Company ) as of 31 51 March. 2022 in conjunction with our 
audit of the lnd AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: 
The Company's ll"'anagement is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Gu1dance Note on Audit of Internal Fmanc1al Controls over Fmancial Reporting issued by 
the lnst1tute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate mternal financ1al controls that were 
operat1ng effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of 1ts assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completen~ss of the accounting records. 
and the timely preparat1on of reliable financial information, as requ1red under thE> Act. 

Auditors' Responsibi lity: 
Our responsibility is to express an opm1on on the Company's mternal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit We have conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Fmancial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, 1ssued by the ICAI and deemed to 
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an aud1t of 
internal financia l controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and. 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note requi"e that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reportmg was established 
and matntained and if such controls operated effectively m all material respects. 

Our aud1t involves performing procedures to obtam aud1t ev1dence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial report1ng and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal fir ancial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness ex1sts. and test1ng and evaluatmg the des1gn and 
operatmg effectiveness of internal comrol based on the assessed nsk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's JUdgement, mcluding the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the lnd AS financial Rtatements whether due to fraud or error. 

We bel eve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit op1n1on on the Company s mternal fmancial controls system 
over financial reporting 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting· 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting 1s a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regardmg the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of lnd AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles A Company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispos1t1ons of the assets of the Company; 

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of lnd AS financial statements in accordance w1th generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that rece1pts and expenditures of the C0mpany are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and Directors of the 
Company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use. or disposition of the Company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the lnd AS financial statements 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 
Because of the inherent limitations of mternal financial controls over financial reporting, 
Including the possibi lity of collusion or Improper management override of controls, materia l 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes 1n conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
w1th the policies or procedures may detenorate. 

Opinion: 
In our opinion, the Company has, tn all material respects an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were ope,.ating effectively as ct 31st March. 2022, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considenng the essential 
components of internal control stated m the Gu1dance Note on Aud1t of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 



.. 

I .. 

Explanatory Paragraph: 
We also have audited, in a1;cordance w1th the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI , 
as specified under section 143(1 0) of the Act, the lnd AS financ1al statements of the 
Company, which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31 81 March, 2022, and the related 
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and 
summary of significant accounting polic1es and other explanatory information, and issued 
our report of even date and expressed an unqualified opinion thereon 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 135703W 

Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 2nd September, 2022 

UDIN: 22152369BBOJZA3879 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO, 

THE MEMBERS OF, 
RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
Report on the Aud it o f the lnd AS Financial St atements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying lnd AS financial statements of RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 

(" the Company"), which comprise the Ba lance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and 

Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow 

Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the lnd AS financial statements, including a summary of 

the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "lnd AS 

financia l statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the lnd AS 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner 

so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affai rs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit (including other comprehensive 

income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Aud iting (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Act . Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibil ities for the Audit of the lnd AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Aud it Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 

audit of the standalone lnd AS financial statements of the cu rrent year. These matters were addressed in 

the context of our audit of the standalone lnd AS financia l statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide ~separate opinion on these matters. 
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Other Information 

The Company's management and Board of Director are responsible for the other information. The Other 

information comprises the information included in the company's annual report but does not include the 

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made 

available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our Opinion on the accompanying lnd AS financia l statements does not cover the other information and 

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the accompanying lnd AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with accompanying lnd AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the other information included in the Company's annual report, if we concluded that there 

is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 

governance. 

Management's Responsibility for the lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 

134(5} of the Act with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial statements that give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows 

of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 

Indian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financia l controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the lnd AS 

financial statements that give a true and fai r view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

In preparing the lnd AS financial statements, management and Board of Director are responsible for 

assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company' s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these lnd AS Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 

are also responsib le for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materia l uncertainty exists related to events or 

condit ions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in t he lnd AS financia l statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the lnd AS financial statements represent the underlying t ransactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our aud it . 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied w ith relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate w ith them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged wit h governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in t he audit of the lnd AS financial statements of the curren t period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or w hen, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be commun icated in our report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

A. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order" ) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the 

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

B. As required by Sect ion 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained al l the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit, 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examination of those books, 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), 

the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement and dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the books of account, 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 

e) On the bas1s of the written representations rece1ved from the directors as on March 31, 2022 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

M arch 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act, and 
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in "Annexure B". 

C. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any material pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. A) There were no funds which have been advanced or loaned or invested by the 

company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities, with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company or provide any guarantee, security 

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

B) There were no funds which have been received by the company from any person(s) 

or entity, including foreign entities, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

C) Nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (A) and (B) contain any material mis-statement. 

v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. 
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D. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, 

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 

by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down 

under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details 

under Section 197{16) which are required to be commented upon by us. 

ForM K Gohel & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI FRN: 103256W 

Mukesh K. Gohel 

Proprietor 
Mem No.: 038823 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07/09/2022 
UDIN: 22038823BCDQOV8902 
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"ANNEXURE-A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I OF OUR REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 

REQUIREMENTS OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 OF RUBIX DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

i. In respect of the Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE): 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The fixed assets of the Company were physically verified in full by the management during 
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us and as examined by us, 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, we 
report that the Company holds freehold land, which are held in the name of the company as 
at the ba lance sheet date. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties 
are held in the name of the company. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not revalued its 

Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no proceedings initiated 
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami 
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has 
no inventory as at the date of balance sheet and accordingly clause 3(ii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(b) The company has not sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees during any 
point of time of the year, in aggregate, from any banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets. 

iii. Company has not made any investments in, nor given any guarantee or security or granted any loans 
or advances which are characterized as loans, unsecured or secured to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties as covered in Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loan to directors or any other person in whom any director is interested, nor made any 
investments in terms of the provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the Act with respect to 
grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits or deemed deposits from the public during the year in terms of the provisions 
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of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provistons of the Act and the rules framed there under. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vi. As explained to us that the company is not required to maintain cost records as prescribed under 
section 148{1) of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

vii. In respect of deposit of statutory liabilities: 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted or accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Gratuity, Income­
tax, Goods and service tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly 
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Gratutty, Goods & Service Tax, Cess and other materia l 
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable except for profession tax of Rs . 0.29 Lakhs. 
According to information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the 
company, examined by us, the company has following disputed statutory dues. 

Statute and 
Financial I Balance disputed 

Forum where 

nature of 
Amount 

Section 
Year 

Disputed Dues 
Paid dues payable 

dispute is 

dues pending 

Income Tax 143(3) 2010-11 7,02,63,801 - 7,02,63,801 Commissioner 

r.w.s. of Income Tax 

263 
(Appeals) 

Total 7,02,63,801 - 7,02,63,801 

- --

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
records of the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income in 
the accounts that have been disclosed or surrendered as income before the tax authorities in the 
income tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ix. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the 
management, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
dues to a financial institution or debenture holder or in payment of interest thereon to any 
lender. 

a. The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or f inancial institution or 
any other lender. 

b. The company has not obtained any money by way of term loans during the year for any 
purposes for which they were obtained. 

c. The company has not raised any funds on a short-term basis for long term purposes. 
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d. The company not raised any money from any person or entity for t he account of or to pay the 
obligations of its associates, subsidiaries or joint ventures. 

e. The company has not raised any loans during the year by pledging securities held in their 
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x. According to the information and explanation g1ven to us, the company has not raised any funds 
from a publ ic offer (equity or debt capita l) . Further the company has not made any private 
placement or preferential allotment of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or 
optionally convertible) during the yea r, in terms of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

xi. During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the company, 
carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to 
information and explanation given to us, we have neither noticed nor have been informed by the 
management, any incidence of fraud by the company or on the Company. 

During the year no reporting under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under ru le 13 of Companies (Aud it and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

According to the information and expla na tions given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that no whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the Company. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi company and accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 
of the Act. Where applicable, the deta ils of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards. 

xiv. In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system in 
accordance w ith the size and nature of its business. The internal audit reports of the company 
have been considered by us during the course of our audit. 

xv. Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per the information and explanations given 
to us, we report that the company has not undertaken any non - cash t ransactions of the nature 
as described in section 192 (1) of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company is not required to get register under sect ion 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and the registrat ion for the same is not requ ired to be obtained. 

xvii. Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per the information and exp lanations given 
to us, we report that the company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year 
covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii. During the year, there has been no resignation of statutory auditors. 
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xix. In our opinion and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the board of directors and management plans, and based on 
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumption, nothing has come to our attention, 
wh ich causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exist as on the date of audit report 
indicating that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing as at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the date of balance 
sheet. However, we state that this is not an assurance as to future viability of the company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent 
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, 
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable .. 

xxi. The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statement. Accordingly, clause 
3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

For M K Gohel & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI FRN: 103256W 

Mukesh K. Gohel 

Proprietor 
Mem No.: 038823 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07/09/2022 
UDIN: 22038823BCDQOV8902 
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"ANNEXURE-B" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH II OF OUR REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL 

CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("THE 

ACT" ) OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31'1 MARCH, 2022 OF RUBIX DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

We have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of PRISTINE DEVELOPERS PRIVATE 
LIMITED ("the Company") as at March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the lnd AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountant of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") . 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
lnd AS financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (" the Guidance Note" ) and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to lnd AS financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to lnd AS 
financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects . 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain aud it evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to lnd AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to lnd AS financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk . The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to lnd AS financial 
statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to lnd AS financial statements 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to lnd AS financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabil. ty of financial report ing and the preparation of lnd 
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to lnd AS financial statements include 
those policies and procedures that: 

(a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

(b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
lnd AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the Company; and 

(c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the lnd AS financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to lnd AS financial statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financ1al with reference to lnd AS financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to lnd AS financia l statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with re ference to lnd AS financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has framed process document 
and risk control matrix for certain key processes relating to internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. In our opin ion, considering the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company and the essentia l components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI and to justify 
existence and operative effectiveness of the said controls, the Company need to strengthen the 
documentation of identified risk & controls to make it commensurate with the si ze of the Company and 
nature of its business. 

ForM K Gohel & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI FRN: 103256W 

Mukesh K. Gohel 

Proprietor 
Mem No.: 038823 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07/09/2022 
UDIN: 22038823BCDQOV8902 
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RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
CJN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2022 
Particulars 

ASSETS 
1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Current tax assets (Net) 
Total Non-Current Assets 

2. Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
(ii) Other financial assets 

Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2. Liabilities 
(i) Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

(ii) Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
-MSME 
-Others 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 103256~ 

m~~ 
Mukesh K. Gohel 

Proprietor 
Membership No.: 038823 

Mumbai 
Date: 07/09/2022 
UDIN: 22038823BCDQOV8902 

Note 

No. 

3 
4 

5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

10 

11 

12 
13 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
(f In Thousand) 

1,009 
745 

1,755 

15,88,939 

561 
10,87,914 

26,77,414 
26,79,169 

100 
(3,691) 
(3,591) 

26,80,000 
26,80,000 

1,630 
37 

1,593 

1,043 
87 

2,760 
26,92,760 
26,79,169 

As at 

31st March, 202 1 

(f In Thousand) 

1,033 
745 

1,778 

15,88,939 

561 
10,88.194 

26,77,695 
26,79,473 

100 
(3,496) 
(3,396) 

26,80,000 
26,80,000 

1,692 
17 

1,675 

1,043 
134 

2,869 
26,92,969 
26,79,473 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

>L:HU 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03142640 

KAMAL MAT ALIA 

DIRECTOR 

DIN : 00009695 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 
Particulars 

I Income 
Other Income 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade 
and Work-in-Progress 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

III Profit I (Loss) before Tax 
IV Tax Expense 

(1) CurrentTax 
(2) Deferred tax (charge) I credit 
(3) Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of 

earlier years 

V Profit I (Loss) for the Year 
VI Other Comprehensive Income 

VII Total comprehensive income for the year 

VIII Earning per equity share of nominal value oft 10/­
each 

Basic and Diluted 

Note 
No. 

14 

15 
16 
17 

18 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 103256W 

~~1,J!A 
Mukesh K. Gobel 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 038823 

Mumbai 
Date: 07/09/2022 
UDJN:22038823BCDQOV8902 

Year ended 
31stMar,2022 
(t In Thousan~ 

24 
171 

195 

(195) 

(195) 

(195) 

(19.48) 

Year ended 
31st Mar, 2021 
(t In Thousan~ 

73 
73 

24 
51 

74 

(2) 

(2) 

(2) 

(0.17) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ D.V.PRABHU 
DIRECTOR 

DIN : 03142640 

KAMAL MAT ALIA 
DIRECTOR 

DIN : 00009695 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE liMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR TH E YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 
Particulars 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACIIVIIIES 
Net profit/ [loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add I (Less) : 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add I (Less) : 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other Current Asset 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Operating profit before working capital changes 
less: Direct taxes paid 
Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIYJIIES 
Inflow 1 (Outflow) on account of: 
Purchase/Sale of Current Investments 
Sale of Fixed Asstes 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

Il l. CASH FJ.OWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow 1 (Outflow) on account of: 
Repayment of Term Borrowing 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash flow from financing activities 
Net increa se in cash and cash equivalents (I+ II +Ill) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash a nd cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash a nd cash equivalents (Refer Note 06) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 
• in Current accounts 
• in Deposits with maturity of less than three months 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial s tatem ents 
Note: 

31st Mar, 2022 
(t In Thousand) 

(195) 

24 

24 
(171) 

280 
(109) 

(0) 

(0) 

(0) 
561 
561 

241 

320 

561 

31st Mar, 2021 
(t In Thousand) 

(2) 

24 

23 
21 

551 
(273) 
299 

299 

299 
261 
561 

241 

320 

561 

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (!nd AS· 7) statement of cash flows. 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 103256W 

~~ 
Mukesh K. Gobel 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 038823 

Mumbai 
Date: 07/09/2022 
UDIN:22038823BCDQOV8902 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ 
DIRECTOR 

DIN : 03142640 

~ 
KAMAL MATALIA 

DIRECTOR 
DIN : 00009695 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 
a) Rubix Trading Private Limited is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the 

business as traders, distributors, dealers, exporter, importer, brokers, stockist and commission agent, agency business, selling and marketing. assembling. 
fabricating and processors of agricultural, commercial, industrial products, household, domestic, automobiles, farm and forest product, food product, leather and 
leather products, rubber and rubber products, petroleum and petroleum products, engineering goods, plant and machinery, equipment, appratus and other gadgets, 
appliances, accessories, spare parts, computer hardware, software, all type of dyes and chemicals, minerals, pharmaceuticals, wool, silk, yam, fibers, garments, 
textiles, cold storage, property and structural development, paper and all kind of boards, tea. timber products, rubber, plastics, footwear, tyres and tubes, cement, 
fertilizers, iron and steel. copper, gold, silver, diamonds, precious stones and jewellery, ferrous and non ferrous metals, electronic toys, games, batteries, button cells, 
telephones, compact discs any other merchandise and commodity. 

b) The Company is also in the business of builders, land developers, property owners, estate agents and indulge in erecting. constructing. developing and maintaining 
mega houseing complexes, township projects, bungalows, farm houses, resorts, hotels, hostels, hospitals, school, dneplexes, commercial complexes and plants and 
to construct, maintain, deal and operate in building of every description either independently or in collaboration with any indian or foreign individualfs, company /s 
orfirm.s. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors in the meeting held on 07th September, 2022 

Note 2. Siltllificant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

(i) Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS1 as notified by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
and other relevant provisions of the Act 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(II) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current and non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable. as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out In Schedule Ill to the Act Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to the 
respective project 

(iv) Rounding of amounts 
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise 
stated. 
II. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of lnd AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses. assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and buildings 
that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to 
earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of 
business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the company develops 
and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Ma r, 2022 

Estimation of net realisable value for Inventory (including advance to land owner) 
Inventory are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). 
NRV for completed property Is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, 
based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real estate segment 

NRV in respect of inventory under construCtion f incomplete projects is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date for similar completed 
property, less estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion. 

With respect to Advance given to land owners, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of future cash flows. which depends on the estimate 
of, among other things, the likelihood that a project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the estimation of sale 
prices and construction costs. 

Ill. Revenue recognition 
Revenues /Income and Costs I Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 
A. Interest: 

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 
B. Othe rs: 

Other revenues 1 incomes and costs 1 expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

IV. Property plant and equipme nt, Investment property a nd depreciation f ammortisation 

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

B. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specified in Schedule 11 to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto 
the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Building 

Computer 

V. Intangible assets and a mortisation 

Est imated useful lire (in Years) 
60 
3 

Acquired computer softwares are classified as intangible assets and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. These are being amortised over the 
estimated useful life of five years, as determined by the management 

VI. Financlallnstrume nts 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
A. Financial Assets 

i. Initial recognition 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is Included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate ("ElR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Fina ncial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial :~ssct is subsequently measured at amortised cost lflt IS held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Measured at Fa ir Value 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL. 

On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of these investments on the date of 
transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE liMITED 

CIN U51909MH2009PTC20474 8 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EN DED 31st Mar, 2022 

iii. De-recognition of Fina ncial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset 
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financia l asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument 

i. Equity Instrume nts 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument 

ii. Financial Liabilities 
1. Initial Recognition 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
- Financial lia bilities at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs 
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee contracts are 
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, 
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 and the amount 
recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

- Fina ncial lia bilities a t amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Vll Derecognition of fina ncial instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the finacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A fi nancial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VIII. Impairment 

a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, 
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance 
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 



RUBIXTRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EN DED 31st Mar, 2022 

b. Non·financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there Is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an Individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on mventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

ii. Provisions 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that Is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 

IX. Taxation 

i. Current Tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of profit 
and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's 
current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax uls 115)B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss. except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, in which c3se, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

X. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of 'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 

A. 'Stock of material at Site' includes cost of purchase, other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost 
fo rmula used is average cost 

B. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of incomplete properties for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the 
revenue recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate directly to a (prospective) project, incurred for the 
purpose of securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure In the year In which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable 
and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

C. Finished properties given under operating lease are disclosed under 'Non Current Assets' as ' Investment Properties'. The costs transferred to the 
' Investment properties' are shown as deductions from the costs carried in opening inventory and construction costs incurred during the year. These 
assets are depreciated I amortised as per the Accounting Policy Nos. (JV)(C) and (IV)(D). Although the Company considers these assets as Inventories 
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, the disclosure under 'Non Current Assets' as 'Investment properties' and provision for depreciation 1 
amortisation is made to comply with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (Jnd AS) 17 - 'Leases' and Indian Accounting Standard (Jnd AS) 
40- ' Investment Property'. 

D. Value of 'Floor Space Index' (FSI) generated is recognized as inventory at cost (i.e. proportionate rehab component cost) as and when necessary 
obligations I conditions are fulfilled in entirety, which are imposed on the Company by statutory authorities (viz.. Rehabilitation Authority, etc.), in lieu 
of which the FSI is allotted to the Company. The value of FSI IS either carried as inventory (at cost) held for intended sale or with the intention to utilise 
in construction of projects undertaken for sale. 

Inventory value includes costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land I rights, value of Floor Space Index (FSI), materials, services and 
other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 



RUB IX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAl STATEMENTS FOR HIE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

XI. Trade and othe r payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other 
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after reporting period. For trade and other payables maturing 
within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

XII. Trade receivable 

A receivable is classified as a 'trade receivable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or services rendered in the normal course of 
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for 
impairment 

XJII. Employee benefits 
a) Provident Fund 
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, labour welfare fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution 
required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. Company's provident fund contribution is made to a government administered 
fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits a re classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has 
no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions. 

b) Gratuity 
The Company provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plans the liabilities of which is determined based on valuations, as at the balance sheet date, 
made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of gratuity 
are recognised in the OCl, in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in OCl are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
subsequent periods. 

The classification of the Company's obligation into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report 
c) Leave Entitlement 
Leave entitlement are provided based on an actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses. 
in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur. 
d) Short-te rm Benefits 
Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses at the undlscounted amounts in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in 
which the absences occur. 

XJV. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

XV. Earnings per Share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, 
if any. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year altributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

XVI. Cash Flow State ment 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature. any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. 
The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XVII. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to a n insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XVJII. Foreign currency transactions 
A. All transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange prevalent on the dates of the relevant 

transactions. 
B. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date, are converted in reporting currency at the closing rates 

of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss is recognized during the year in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the date of the transaction. 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Ma r, 2022 

XIX. Segment re porting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating 
decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment of"Real Estate Development". Thus, as defined In 
lnd AS 108 "Operating Segments", the Company's entire business falls under this one operational segment and hence the necessary information has already 
been disclosed in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

XX. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation Qegal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a 
liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

OTHER EQUITY 
Reserves and Surplus 

Equity Share Debenture 
Capital Redemption Reserve 

Balance at 31st March, 2020 100 100 

Profit I (Loss) for the year - -

Balance at 31st March, 2021 100 100 

Profit I (Loss) for the year - -

Balance at 31st March, 2022 100 100 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 103256W 

~~~ 
Mukesh K. Gobel 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 038823 

Mumbai 
Date: 0710912022 
UDIN: 22038823BCDQOV8902 

Retained Earnings 

(421) 

(2) 

(423) 

(195) 

(617) 

Amount 
(f In Thousand) 

Total 

(221) 

(2) 

(223) 

(195) 

(417) 

DIRECTOR 
DIN: 03142640 

~ 
KAMAL MAT ALIA 

DIRECTOR 
DIN : 00009695 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 

Note 3. Property, plant and equipment. 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31st March, 2020 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2021 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2020 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2021 

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2021 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31st March, 2021 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2022 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2021 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st Mar, 2022 

Carrying amount as at 31st Mar, 2022 

Residential 
Premises 

1,496 

1,496 

440 

24 
463 

1,033 

1,496 

1,496 

463 

24 
487 

1,009 

Computers and 
Laptops 

638 

638 

638 

638 

638 

638 

638 

638 

(f In Thousand) 

Total 

2,134 

2,134 

1,077 

24 
1,101 

1,033 

2,134 

2,134 

1,101 

24 
1,125 

1,009 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

Note 4. Current tax assets (Net) 

Advance Income Tax paid 
Less: Provision for Tax 

Total 

Note 5. Inventories 

Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
-Incomplete projects (refer footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st Mar, 2022 
(~ In Thousand) 

745 

745 

15,88,939 
15,88,939 

As at 
31st Mar, 2021 
(~ In Thousand) 

745 

745 

15,88,939 
15,88,939 

The Inventory reflected above is towards the project at 3K SION. Due to current adverse situation of real estate 
Industry and settlement of the Occupier of the plot, the progress is slow & once the market improves we will 
commence the project activity 

Note 6. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 7. Other financial assets 

Current 
Advances recoverable in Cash or in kind 

Unsecured, considered good 
- Related Party 
-Others 
Total 

Loans and Advances - Disclosures 
F" F th C R 1gures or e urrent p . d eporting eno 

Borrower 
Related Parties 

Total 

F" F p 1gures or reVIOUS R t" p . d epor mg eno 

Borrower 
Related Parties 

Total 

320 
241 

561 

26,772 
10,61,142 

10,87,914 

Amount of loan or advance 
outstanding_ 

26,772 
26,772 

Amount of loan or advance 
outstanding 

25,492 
25,492 

320 
241 
561 

25,492 
10,62,702 

10,88,194 

% to Total Loan or 
Advance 

100.00 
100.00 

% to Total Loan or 
Advance 

100.00 
100.00 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE liMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009 PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar , 2022 

Note 8 . Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital : 
10,000 (As at 31st March, 202 1: 10,000) Equity Shares of ~ 101- each fully 
paid up 

Total 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
10,000 (As a t 31st March, 2021: 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 101- each fully paid up 

Total 

a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Ordinary Equity Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2020 

Add I (Less): Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2021 

Add 1 (Less) : Issued 1 (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2022 

b) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

As at 31st Mar, 2022 
No of shares % holding 

Equity Share Capital 
Vinca Developer Private Limited with Beneficiary Owner 
Hubtown Limited 

Total 
9,994 99.94 
9,994 99.94 

As at 
31st Mar, 2022 
(~ In Thousand) 

100 

100 

100 

100 
100 

Number of shares 

10,000 

10,000 

10,000 

As at 
31st Mar, 2021 
(~ In Thousand) 

100 

100 

100 

100 
100 

Number of shares 

10,000 

10,000 

10,000 

As at 31st Mar, 2021 
No of shares held % holding 

10.000 100 

10,000 100 

c) Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding 
company 

Holding Company of Reporting Company (HCRC) 
Vinca Developer Private Limited with Beneficiary Owner 
Hubtown Limited 
Diviniti Project Private Limited 
Varna Housing Limited 
Vega Developers Private Limited 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 
Citygold Ed uction Research Limited 
Total 

As at 
31st Mar, 2022 

9,994 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

9999 

As a t 
31st Mar, 2021 

10,000 

10,000 

d) The rights, preferences and restrictions attacb:ug to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment 
of capital: 
The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ~ 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the 
event of liquidation of company, the holders of equ:ty shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion t? •he number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

Note 9. Other Equity 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add/(Less): Profit for the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Total 

Note 10. Borrowings 
Non-current 

1285 (P.Y. 1285) Debentures (Optionally 
Partly convertible Debenture ofRs. 10,00,000 
each) (Secured) 

1395 (P.Y. 1395) Debentures (Optionally Partly convertible 
Debenture of Rs. 10,00,000 each) (Secured) 
(Refer Footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st Mar, 2022 
(~ In Thousand) 

100 
100 

(3,596) 
(195) 

(3,791) 

(3,691) 

12,85,000 

13,95,000 

26,80,000 

As at 
31st Mar, 2021 
(~ In Thousand) 

100 
100 

(3,594) 
-1.66818 
(3,596) 

(3,496) 

12,85,000 

13,95,000 

26,80,000 

The company has not provided for any interest on OPCD's,as the Parties are in the process of 

settlement/renegotiating the terms. 

Note 12. Other financial liabilities 

Advances Payable in Cash or in Kind 
Related Party 
Total 

Note 13. Other liabilities 

Current 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 
- Provisions 

Total 

1,043 
1,043 

40 
46 
87 

1,043 
1,043 

43 
91 

134 



RUB IX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 

Note 11. Trade payables 

Particulars Less I han 1 year 1-2 ears 
31sl March, 2022 31sl March, 2021 31sl March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

Dues loMSME 20 - - 17 
Dues to others 31 - 92 

Total 51 - - 109 

~ 

(~ In Thousand) 

2-3 ears More I han 3 years Tota l 

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 31sl March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

17 - - 37 17 
151 1,563 1,432 1,593 1,675 

17 151 1,563 1,432 1,630 1,692 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

Note 14. Other income 
Sundry Creditor Balances Written Back 

Total 

Note 15. Changes in Invento ries of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress 

Opening Inventory : 
Incomplete projects 

Add 1 [Less): 
Project expenses written back 

Closing Inventory: 
Incomplete projects 

To tal 

Note 16. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

Depreciation on residential premises 
Total 

Note 1 7. Other Expenses 

Other expenses (Refer footnote) 
Total 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration (included in other exoenses) 
Audit fees 
GSTon above 

Total 

Note 18. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Basic Earning Per Share 
Diu ted Earnings Per Share 

18.1 Basic EPS 

Year ended 
31st Ma r, 2022 
(~ In Thousand) 

15,88,939 
15,88,939 

15,88,939 

15,88,939 
15,88,939 

#DIV/ 0! 
#DIV/0! 

24 
24 

171 
171 

50 
9 

59 

Year ended 
31st Mar, 2021 
(! In Thousand) 

73 
73 

1S,88,939 
15,88,939 

1S,B8,939 

1S,88,939 
15,88,939 

#DIV/0! 
#DIV/0! 

24 
24 

51 
51 

50 
9 

59 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows. 

Profit fo r the year attributable to the owners of the Company 

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 
Basic EPS 

18.2 Diluted EPS 

(1,94,784) 

(1,94,784) 
10,000 
(19.48) 

· The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as fo llows: 

Earnings used in Calculation of Basic Earnings per Share 

Earnings Used in calculation of Diluted earnings per s hare 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of Diluted earnings per 
share 
Diluted EPS 

(1,94,784) 

(1,94,784) 

10,000 
(19.48) 

(1.668) 

(1,668) 
10,000 

(0.17) 

(1,668) 

(1,668) 

10,000 
(0.17) 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

Note 19. Capital Management 

The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to 
support its business and maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on 
an annual basis. 

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total 
equity of the company. The borrowings consist of debentures issued, term loans from financial institutions and loans from 
companies. Preference shares issued by the company have been considered as debt in calculation of financial ratios, as it is 
in the nature of debt. 

Gearing Ratio 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows 
Particulars 

Secured Loan 
Total Debt 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Net Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B 

Note 20: Categories of Financial Instruments 

Fair Value measurement 
31st March ,2022 

Particulars FVPL/FVOCI Amortised Cost 
Einam:ial Ass~ts 
Loans - -
Other financial assets - 10,87,914 
Cash and cash equivalent - 561 
Total of Financial Assets - 10,88,475 

Einancial Liabiliti~s 
Borrowings - 26,80,000 
Trade payables - 1,630 
Other Financial liabilities - 1,043 
Total of Financial Liabilities - 26,82,673 

As at 
31st Mar, 2022 
(~ In Thousand) 

26,80,000 
26,80,000 

(561) 
26,79,439 

100 
(3,691) 

(3,591) 

(746) 

As at 
31st Mar, 2021 
(~ In Thousand) 

26,80,000 
26,80,000 

(561) 
26,79,439 

100 
(3,496) 

(3,396) 

(789) 

{~ In Thousand) 
31st March ,2021 

FVPL/ FVOCI Amortised Cost 

- -
- 10,88,194 
- 561 
- 10,88,755 

.I 
, - 26,80,000 

1,692 
1,043 

- 26,82,735 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

Note: 21 Related Party disclosures 
I) List of related party disclosures 

A Parent/ Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited 

B Fellow Subsidiaries 
Citywood Builders Private Limited 
Citygold Education Research Limited 

C Associates of Holding Company 
Vinca Developers Private Limited 
Shubhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 

D Partnership Firm of Holding Company 
Shreenath Realtors 

Note: Related party relationships are as identified by the company and relied upon by the Auditor 

II) Related party transactions and balances at the end of the year 

Particulars 

A. Transactions I Related parties 

1 Loans and Advances givenjrepaid/ recovered/ adjusted 
a) Vinca Developer Private Limited (Reimbursement) 

2 Loans and advances or Reimbursement received/ 
recovered/ adjusted 

a) Hubtown Limited 

Note: Figures in brackets are of previous year 

B. Balance Outstanding payablesj receivables 

Particulars 

1 Receivables 
Other Companies 

Citywood Builders Private Limited 
Shubhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 
Citygold Education Research Limited 
Shreenath Realtors. 
Vinca Developer Private Limited 

As at 
31st Mar, 2022 
(~In Thousand) 

4,21,237 
51,725 

5,82,554 
6,331 

26,772 

(~ In Thousand) 
Fellow 

Subsidiary I 
Associates 

12,80,000 
(40,00,000) 

As at 
31st Mar, 2021 
(~In Thousand) 

4,21,237 
51,725 

5,82,554 
6,331 

25,492 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 

Note 22. Ra tios 

fhe ratios for the years ended March 31. 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows : 

a 
b 
c 
cl 
c 

Particulars 

. Current Ratio 

. Debt- Equity Ratio 

. Debt Service Coverae.e Ratio 

. Return on Equity fROEl 

. Inventory turnover ratio 

'. Trade receivables turnover ratio 

g 
h 

. Trade payables turnover ratio 

. Net capital turnover ratio 

. Net profit ratio 
Return on capital employed (RO j 

k . IRPt11rn nn lnvP<:tmPntfROI) 

UnQuoted 
Quoted 

Numerator Denominator 

Current assets Current liabilities 
Total Net Debt Shareholder's Equity 
Earnine.s avai lable for debt service Debt Service 
Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder's Equity 
Revenue Inventory 

Revenue Average TJ'ade Receivable 
Purchases of se rvices and other ex Average Trade Payables 

Revenue Working Capita l 
Profit After Tax Revenue 
Earning before interest and taxes Capital Employed 

Net Profit Investment 
Income genera ted from investmen Time weighted average investme 
Income generated from investmen Time weighted average investme 

~ 

Reasons (If 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 Varia nce Varia nce More Than 

25%) 
jln Times) flnTimesl (In Percentae.e (% ) l 

970.12 933.33 3.94% -
26,791.69 26,794.73 -0.01 o/o - -

(0.00) ro.om 11576.45% Increase in expenses 
(0.00) (0.00) 11576.45% Increase in expenses 
0.00 0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00 0.00% -
0.12 0.00 142757.08% 

Increase in expenses 
in the current vear 

0.00 0.00 0.00% -
0.00 0.00 0.00% -
0.00 0.00 0.00% -
0.00 0.00 0.00% -
0.00 0.00 0.00% -
0.00 0.00 0.00% -



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 

Note 23. Other Statutory Information For The Year Ended 31 March 2022: 

i) The Company do not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or 
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii) The Company does not have any transaction during the current financial year with companies 
struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

iii) The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar 
of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
financial year. 

v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the Company shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

vii) The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts 

that has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income-tax 

Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act. 1961). 
viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

Government or any Government authority or other lender in current financial year, in accordance 
with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 

ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the ~ompanies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 
2017 from the date of their implementation. 



RUBIX TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U51909MH2009PTC204748 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2022 

Note:24. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

The Company's financial r isk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business 
strategies. The Company's financial risk management policy is set by the managing board. 

The Company manages market risk through a treasury department which evaluates and excercises 
independent control over the entire process of market risk management The treasury department 
recommend risk management objectives and policies which are approved by the senior management The 
activities of this department include management of cash resources, borrowing strategies and ensuring 
compliance with the market risk limits and policies. 

!)Market Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market 
interest rates relates primarily to company's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

2)Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or 
customer contract leading to a financial loss. The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating 
activities or trade receivables since the underlying assets can be reposessed by the company on default bt 
the customer. 

3)Liquidity risk 
The company is in stage of construction of buildings. All allowable expenses are inventorised by as per the 
policy of the company. Liquidy risk is dependent on the market demand for completed flats. 

Note: 25 
In the opinion of The Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and 
Loan and Advances continue to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the 
balance sheet 

Note: 26 Contingent Liability 

Statute and Section Financial Disputed Forum where dis pute is pending 
nature of Year Amount 
dues Pavable (Rs.l 
Income Tax 143(3) 2010-11 7.02,63.801 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 

r.w.s.147 

Total 7,02,63,801 

Note: 27 
Previous year figures has been regroupedfreclassified,wherever nessasary 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants F;7n No.: 103256W 

Mukesb K Gobel 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 038823 

Mumbai 
Date: 07/09/2022 
UDIN: 22038823BCDQOV8902 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
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DIRECTOR 
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KAMAL MAT ALIA 
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